ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY,
AGRICULTURE, AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
Council Chamber
September 29, 2015

CONVENE:

1:43 p.m.

PRESENT:

VOTING MEMBERS:
Councilmember Don S. Guzman, Chair
Councilmember Stacy Crivello
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino
Councilmember Mike White

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Elle Cochran, Vice- Chair
Councilmember Don Couch
Councilmember Riki Hokama

STAFF:

Sharon Brooks, Legislative Attorney
Kit Zulueta, Communication Director
Josiah Nishita, Deputy County Clerk
Pauline Martins, Committee Secretary
Ella Alcon, Council Aide, Molokai Council Office (via telephone
conference bridge)
Denise Fernandez, Council Aide, Lanai Council Office (via
telephone conference bridge)
Dawn Lono, Council Aide, Hana Council Office (via telephone
conference bridge)

ADMIN.:

Jerrie Sheppard, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel
Sananda K. Baz, Budget Director, Office of the Mayor
Kaala Buenconsejo, Director, Department of Parks and Recreation
David Sakoda, Arborist, Department of Parks and Recreation
Susan Kiang, Volunteer Action Coordinator, Department of Parks
and Recreation

OTHERS:

Patricia Hoskin
Carole Eiserloh
Robert Hobdy
Elaine Malina

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
September 29, 2015

Jean Pezzoli
Duke Sevifia, Ke Ao I Kam Akani H&eh&ffi
Tamara Paltin, Save Honolua
Jordan Hart
Ernest H. Rezents
Kimberly Thayer, Chair, Maui County Arborist Committee
Scott Crawford, Na Mamo 0 Muolea (via video conference from Hana
Council Office)
Jan Effiott, Treasurer, Na Mamo 0 Muolea (via video conference from
Hana Council Office)
Plus (6) other people
Akaku Maui Community Tete vision, Inc.

PRESS:

CHAIR GUZMAN:
(gavel)... Good afternoon. Welcome to the Economic Development,
Energy, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee. I’m Don Guzman the Chair of the
Committee. Before I begin, may I ask everyone to please put your cell phones on the
silence mode. I’m going to introduce our Members that we have today, we have Stacy
Crivello, good afternoon.
.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: We have the Chair of the Council Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon, and we have Mr. Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
Thank you.
Excused we have the Vice-Chair of the Committee
Elle Cochran, Don Couch, Riki Hokama are excused today. I’m gonna introduce our
Staff today, we have our Legislative Attorney Sharon Brooks as well as our Committee
Secretary Pauline Martins. Before we begin I’d like to ask anyone who’d like to testify
to please sign up in the lobby, youU have three minutes to testify on today’s agenda
items only.
When you come to the podium please state your name and/or
organization in which you represent. I’m gonna go ahead and check in with our
District Offices in, Hana Office, are you there?
MS. LONO: Yes. Good afternoon, Chair, this is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon. And in, Lanai Office, are you there?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair, this is Denise Fernandez on Lanai.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Fernandez. And on, Molokai Office, are you there?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair, this is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon, Ms. Alcon. We’re gonna turn our attention back to the
Chambers, can you please call our first testifier.
MS.

BROOKS:
The first testifier is Patricia Hoskin and she will be followed by
Carole Eiserloh.

BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMOMY...
MS. HOSMN: Aloha, my name is Patricia Hoskin. I’m going to be talking about EAR- 10 so
this is when you want me to speak before any of the motions have been discussed?
Okay. My name is Patricia Hoskin, I’m a senior aged resident of Maui County living in
Kihei fuiltime since 2009 and owning since 2005. I am a retired chemistry and biology
teacher with a Master’s degree in Biology with my research being done in botany. I am
asking you to adopt the Maui County Planting Plan, Third Edition it is a serious, well
written and organized work by Ernest Rezents, a respected and knowledgeable
arborist. It is a fabulous work which will help concerned citizens who want to know
what to plant on their property and guide the developers to choose landscaping
companies which promote sustainable use of our valuable land. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Hoskin, Is there any further questions that we have for
the testifier? Seeing none, can you please call the next testifier.
MS. BROOKS: The next testifier is Carole Eiserloh and she will be followed by Robert Hobdy.
MS. EISERLOH: Good afternoon. Members of the Committee and Councilman Guzman, I
am also testifying on the same... okay oh, sorry, thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And please state your name.
MS. EISERLOH: Very good. You can hear me better?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. EISERLOH: Good. I’m also testifying on the Maui County Planting Plan. My name is
Carole Eiserloh and we have owned in Kihei since 1984. During that time we have
seen huge changes in our wonderful island. Unfortunately many of our wonderful old
growth trees and other plantings have been destroyed to make way for development.
Groups such as Maui Green and Beautiful have worked hard to save our tropical
paradise by nurturing our gardens and advising developers and landscapers on the
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best practices for preservation and future planning. We are writing in support of the
new Maui County Planting Guide prepared by Maui Green and Beautiful with
Ernie Rezents as its main author. We all realize our good fortune in having his
expertise and efforts to help with this task. This is the third edition of the plan, it has
been expanded and approved and will be invaluable for our future development.
Please give your approval and acceptance of the guide. We were the first in the State
to have such a document. It will be invaluable for use by landscape professionals and
the community in their planning for the future. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Eiserloh. Is there any questions from the Committee
Members? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. BROOKS: The next testifier will be Robert Hobdy, followed by Elaine Malina.
MR. HOBDY: My name’s Bob Hobdy, I’m a retired forester and former chair of the Arborist
Committee and served on that committee in an ex officio capacity since 1972. So I’ve
been involved with the development of this plan over the years and it has expanded
and become a document that has great value for the citizens of Maui and also for
people who are developing projects so that they know the proper ways to implement a
lot of the stuff that theyre tasked with. And I’m very happy to support this planting
plan, and that’s basically it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Hobdy. Is there any questions from the
Members? Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. BROOKS: Next testifier is Elaine Mama, followed by Jean Pezzoli.
MS. MALINA: Aloha. I’m Elaine Malina, President of Maui Outdoor Circle. I also work in the
landscape industry for over 30 years on Maui. Ernest Rezents was my teacher, I’m a
certified arborist, and also a former member of the Maui County Arborist Committee. I
prepared something to read. I thank you all for your time on this too. Maui County
should be proud that we have such a document, the first in the State. Now we have
an updated one that includes so much more. I was introduced to the MCPP as we call
it when I was serving in the Maui County Arborist Committee. I’ve used a lot in my
profession in the landscape, kept it in my car, I know a lot of my friends that are
arborists and landscape people keep it in their trucks so it, my copy is pretty dead.
And as Maui Green and Beautiful we do... and formally Maui Outdoor Circle we do
share the information that’s in the plan with the community. I urge you all to adopt
Why?
Because
the proposed resolution without any more further revisions.
Mr. Ernest Rezents has taken such a remarkable and hardworking journey to update
this Maui County Planting Plan.
The Maui County departments have
with
have
already... associated
the documents
already commented on the revision. I
know Mr. Rezents has taken each suggestion seriously and researched it and changed
where necessary.
Many knowledgeable individuals and organizations have
contributed to this document also. I’ve attended many Maui County arborist meetings
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as a community member now and have seen the hard work and seriousness that each
of these volunteers of the committee, who are tree educated, has worked with
Mr. Rezents to complete this document. Maui County is extremely lucky to have one
of the top tree experts in the State, our very own Ernest Rezents who recently received
the, international recognition for his works and contributions in arboriculture by the
International Society of Arboriculture as a recipient of the true professional
arboriculture, lot of arboriculture words there, award this August at their conference
in Florida. I have three final statements to make. Please have this revised edition
adopted today without further revisions. With this revised document Maui County is
making it known that the urban forest is important, the value of a tree is as important
to the community economically and culturally and Maui County would continue to be
a leading example of doing what is best for the people of Maui, Maui now and for
future generations to benefit from a well cared for and protected urban forest.
MS. BROOKS: Thirty seconds.
MS. MALINA: The publication has been used so much by professionals in the landscape
industry, architects, landscape architects, developers and planners, and so on. It
would be used more by the community if it was promoted more and I hope that
happens and made more available. Thank you so much for your time. Mahalo.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Members, any follow up questions? Seeing none, thank you
very much
--

MS. MALINA: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --Ms. Malina.
MS. BROOKS: The next testifier is Jordan Hart.
MR. HART: Good afternoon, Chair and Members. My name is Jordan Hart. I’m the
President of Chris Hart and Partners, we are a landscape architecture and land use
planning firm. I’m here to testify in support of the planting plan. I think that the new
update of the planting plan is fantastic. I think it’s thorough and well organized, it’s
gone through agency review. I know that Ernie and Bob and others have done a lot of
research to back the information that’s provided there and I just want to urge the
Council to provide positive comment and so that the plan can proceed to public
hearing and adoption. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Members any follow up questions? Seeing none, thank you
very much, Mr. Hart.
MS. BROOKS: The next testifier is Jean Pezzoli.
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MS. PEZZOLI: Aloha. My name is Jean Pezzoli. I am currently a member of the County
Arborist Committee, but I’m here to testify on my own behaif. Normally I’m a
professor at the University of Hawaii Maui College. Every plant that you sow is your
legacy for the future of Maui and for our planet. Every breath of oxygen that you take
comes from a plant that is growing somewhere. Oxygen doesn’t get mined like a
diamond, but it does grow on trees by photosynthesis. Every time you see a tree
butchered the producer of oxygen gets reduced, there is less oxygen produced and
much less shade to lower our searing temperatures. One shady tree in a parking lot
not only reduces the heat under its crown, it also reduces the ambient temperatures,
and research has shown that shady parldng lots increase sales as shoppers delight in
the coolness and the shade. Maui County is forward by recognizing the importance of
planting trees in parking lots and by tree lining our streets and neighborhoods. How
best to take care of our trees is a topic of much discussion and believe me, Ernie, the
County Arborist Committee, we have all spent hours, there’s many minds, many
experienced growers and many experienced arborists have contributed to this planting
plan. It’s like if you go to a doctor and the doctor prescribes a serious operation, the
next thing you do is go to another doctor and make sure that the consensus is there.
And I would like to say this planting plan is a consensus of many minds that have
chewed over this for a long time. It shows depth of experience brought on by the
leadership of Ernie who is certainly our mentor. We have put together this recipe for
the selection and caring of our trees
--

MS. BROOKS: Thirty seconds.
MS. PEZZOLI: --right here in Maui County, our legacy for our island. I hope you adopt the
plan. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Members, any follow-up questions? Seeing none, thank you
very much, Ms. Pezzoli.
MS. BROOKS: There are no more testifiers in the Chamber.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Well check in with our District Offices.
Office, Ms. Lono, is there anyone wishing to testify?

In Hana

MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. In Lanai, Ms. Fernandez, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And on Molokai, Ms. Alcon, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. ALCON: There’s no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, ladies.
public testimony.

Members, without objections I would like to close

COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.

EAR-34

OPEN SPACE, NATURAL RESOURCES, CULTURAL RESOURCES, AND SCENIC
VIEWS PRESERVATION FUND (MISC)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Turning your attention to the first item on today’s agenda, EAR-34, The
Committee is in receipt of Miscellaneous Communication, dated May 28, 2015, from
the County Clerk, reporting that on May 26, 2015 the Council referred the matter
relating to Open Space, Natural Resources, Cultural Resources and Scenic Views
Preservation Fund. Members, today we will continue our review on the Open Space
Fund in two parts. First with the members of the Administration and secondly with a
panel representing those who have worked to acquire lands in Maui County for
preservation purposes, including the, I believe that we have Duke Sevilla, Scott
Crawford and Tamara Paltin. Let’s start with the Administration, first with Mr. Baz.
The Committee requested at our last meeting several questions that I had posed in
writing. First of all, Ill state those questions just to refresh the Members’ memory. I
believe it was regarding the, for grant recipients, the annual or quarterly reports
submitted to the Mayor’s Office pursuant to the grant agreement including
management plans, a description of the Mayor’s grant proposal review process
including the consideration of criteria for selections and a copy of any forms used for
those purposes, a copy of the conservation easement recorded in favor of the County,
and description of all post-acquisition monitoring of the use of the property to ensure
it comports with preservation purposes. Also for the County acquisitions, that was the
second process in acquiring these type of lands. A number one was a description of
the process to the Mayor’s Office to review and selection of properties to be acquired
with the fund, including the makeup of the Administration acquisition committee.
Number two, a description of any mechanism for public import.. .input regarding
property selection, any plan to use an acquisition as a park, identification of the
department responsible for maintaining each property, and any administrative rules or
policies to ensure the property is maintained for preservation purposes. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members, good afternoon. My name is Sandy Baz the
Budget Director. I did receive your request on Thursday afternoon. The items you’re
requesting is gonna take a pretty significant amount of research so Ill start, I’ve
started collecting them, reached out to different organizations and well provide you
with further information later regarding the responses. I can give some verbal
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comments today and identify some other research that I found so far if you’d like,
Mr. Chair?
CHAIR OUZMAN: Yes, please go ahead.
MR. BAZ: So the, basically from the County’s perspective since we came into office in 2011,
we’ve had, the way, the process that we followed is that requests for use of the fund
from outside organizations, community land trusts or other organizations go through
our Environmental Coordinator Mr. Rob Parsons.
He will collect their grant
application, I review the grant application for its applicability to Chapter 3.88, and
then if it is something that is allowed by 3.8$ it goes forward to the Mayor for review.
And should the Mayor support the application in process it’ll go through in our, either
our proposed budget for the fiscal year and annual budget or as a budget amendment
down to Council for further action. As far as public input at this point, the public
inputs that are received would be at the Council activity, you know, during the
Council’s public hearing the public will be provided an opportunity through your
processes to review the purchase, review the grant agreement, and be able to provide
comments on that at the Council level. For annual reports or quarterly reports I have
yet to fmd them, w&re digging through files. I do, did want to, I did want to reference,
Mr. Agsalog’s response back to Council.
Let’s see what date is this? This is
August 10th response in which he responded there was one grant, there’s actually two
grants for purchase of real property that were provided, one was to the Maui Coastal
Land Trust which is now, successor agency Hawaii Islands Lands Trust. And the
second one was for a Molokai Land Trust for lands on Molokai, and it had been
classified as a purchased land but it’s actually a grant that we provided to them. So
I’m, I do have a copy of their grant agreement that I can provide as well in response
but no reports that I found so far. Let’s see, in relation to the grant review proposal
process I explained that I’m in the process of collection, the conservation easements as
well. And description of all post-acquisition monitoring of the use, Ill collect that as
well. I know some members in the Administration have gone to the old Waihee Dairy
site and worked over there and clean ups as and well monitored them. Their website
has some further information about that as well. And for the County acquisitions,
description of the process in the Mayor’s office for review and selection of properties to
be acquired, is fairly similar, you know, somebody will come, approach the Mayor or
myself for a request for purchase of land and we, if Mayor decides that he wants to
move forward with that, we send an amendment down to County Council for a budget
amendment, and then that gets reviewed at the Council level. Public input is provided
at that point, and then action is taken after that. The most recent example of that was
the Paukukalo, Kaehu Bay purchase, so. And w&re currently working with the
organizations, one of them you have at the table here to develop a long-term
maintenance and monitoring plan, but none is in place at this point. And there are no
adopted administrative rules regarding this fund. The, Chapter 3.88 is what we’re
following as far as administrative, there’s no additional adopted rules.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. And, Members, as we had.,. and during our last meeting it was
imperative that we examine the process of selecting and using the Open Space Fund.
I’m gonna open up the floor for any questions that you may have to the Administration
at this time. Seeing none, okay. So well move forward. At our last meeting I believe
that we had Dale Bonar here and as well as a representative from...

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? I’m sorry, I do have one question.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: When can we expect this report from Mr. Baz in the area of
what we’ve expanded, what we’ve been working on, the various questions that you
brought forward
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WCTORINO: --that we have all been asking? When can we expect it? I
understand you got it Thursday so I didn’t expect you to get it today, but when?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. I’m hoping to get it done by October 15th, that’s the extension that I
requested. I still have, you know, give me a few weeks to work on it. As far as what’s
been expended from the fund, that report was provided by Director Agsalog in his
August 10th report so you can see the balance of the fund and what’s been expended.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That I know but I just was talking about, you know, how
the priorities were set, I think that’s what our biggest question was, who’s setting
these priorities and what’s driving them at this point in time. So anyhow, okay, thank
you, Mr. Chair, I appreciate that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. That’s actually a good point, and the last
meeting that we had there was discussion by the Maui Coastal Land Trust, I believe
was Dale Bonar as well representatives from the Molokai Land Trust. And there was
mention about what they called a greenprinting which is a process involving the
community collaboration to develop a plan for meeting local and regional conservation
priorities and creating strategies for protecting those places with interested
landowners. We were, we actually had planned for today Lea Hong who is the
executive director for the Trust for Public Land to present here and actually give us
more information on the greenprinting process. I believe the other jurisdictions in the
State also have that type of methodology or plan in place. Unfortunately she had
called a few hours ago and had some personal issues that she could not make the
ffight over. But moving forward we will go ahead and invite her back again at the next
meeting and that will give Mr. Baz plenty of opportunity to coordinate and respond to
our questions that we posed to him. Today that we have currently on the panel that
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can discuss their experience in dealing with the County and the Open Space fund is
Duke Sevila and he’s from Ke Ao I Kam Akani H&eha’ili? Gosh I butchered that.
He’s the president and [sic] the board of the nonprofit which worked with the County
to complete the purchase of 64 acres of the undeveloped coastal wetlands at Kaehu
Bay. We also have Scott Crawford along with I believe Janet Effiot and they’re with Na
Mamo 0 Muolea, and they are appearing via video conferencing from Hana District
Office which is our first time that we’ve ever had this type of technology on the floor.
Scott Crawford has served as the secretary since its founding in 2006, and in 2004
was involved in the effort to purchase the property and have it transferred to the
County.
Scott’s wife is also a lineal descendent of the Muolea area and is a
recent... Na Mamo is also a recipient of the grant of the lease from the County for
preservation and cultural purpose pursuant to this Committee’s recommendations.
And we also have Tamara Palm which is, she’s representing Save Honolua, she is a
magna cum laude graduate of Hilo High School in 1995 and a cum laude graduate of
Northern Arizona University with a Bachelor’s of Science in Mathematics and
Education. She also is the president and executive director of the 501(c)(3) nonprofit,
Save Honolua coalition since 2009. She has been involved in acquiring funds for the
Lipoa Point project in 2014. So I’m gonna turn the floor over to our representatives
that have worked with the different entities and have them share their experience in
dealing with Open Space Fund and the County, and if they can provide the Committee
any recommendations or concerns. Thank you. Mr. Sevilla, you may start first if you
like.
MR. SEVILLA: I’m gonna have Tamara start first.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. PALTIN: Aloha mai kakou. I think at the time when we had the open space funds only
Councilmember Victorino that’s here was on the Council at the time. I believe it was
2006 when the plans for development at Honolua were first announced as part of the
General Plan process. The community that I live in, the County, and the global
community were mostly against those plans for development. In 2007 we formed the
Save Honolua coalition and got our nonprofit status, and arranged for a group of
people, keiki to kupuna to come and testify in support of a resolution put forward by
then Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson in support of acquiring land at Honolua. The
testimony lasted pretty much all day and Councilmember Johnson and then South
Maui Councilmember Michelle Anderson proposed at the time to earmark $1 million
out of the open space funds towards the purchase of land at Honolua in response to
the community’s concerns. They wanted to show that they supported the people who
supported preservation of this land. And when youre trying to acquire open space
each area that you acquire has its own sets of challenges and opportunities, and at
that time it wasn’t known how much the land would cost, it wasn’t known if the land
was for sale. There were so much unknowns that the Council supporting, putting
aside $1 miffion towards open space funds at Honolua made a huge difference to our
community that supported preserving this land. Many of us, it was the first time we
-
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had ever been to the Council building, it was the first time we had ever testified, it was
the first time we even heard what a Counci]member was. And the commitment by the
sitting Council to earmark $1 miffion of open space funds was a message that they
had heard our pleas, and the commitment that was shown to us was met by a
commitment by our community to follow through and not just walk away from the
million dollars. It was that important to us that we stuck with it for the past eight
years trying all different avenues to acquire the land, and it fmally culminated in
2013, RB I believe it was 1524 passing, the Governor signing it and on October 9,
2014 the general bond obligations were paid to Maui Land and Pine. And for $20
million, none of which actually ended up being County open space funds, 244 acres at
Ronolua was acquired. So even though the $1 million eannarked wasn’t used for the
purchase, I would say it was a significant factor in eventually acquiring the lands. Not
having experience in how these things are done it gave our board, our community a
sense of this is important, a million dollars you just don’t walk away from it, and in
the end I really feel that the County didn’t lose out anything by earmarking that $1
million because the million dollars is still there to this day. It’s not like we had it in an
account at American Savings, it’s not like it wasn’t earning interest, it was a
motivational, inspirational piece of the whole picture. And I know in general when
acquiring open space for government agencies you want to have a long-term
management plan before youre gonna say yeah w&re gonna put money towards this
issue. But most people that work towards open space acquisition are doing so purely
out of passion, there’s no profit involved, there’s no income involved, it’s hours and
years of your own work, and to try and put together a management plan for land that
you don’t own is very difficult. Knowing that Honolua is such used area, that
thousands of people a day go to it we had at one time approached Maui Land and
Pineapple to work on a management plan and the answer I got from the then land
manager was you can’t make a plan for somebody else’s land. But at the time
thousands of people were going there and there was no plan for management, you
know, and we started at the most basic level of providing Porta Potties, providing
signage and even that we had to fight for two years to get the permit to provide Porta
Potties. So fast forward to this day when the land has been acquired, we have a
commitment from private donors to pledge up to a $100,000 for professional
long-term, sustainable management planning. W&re at the point right now where we
need the State to agree to abide by what the community-based sustainable
management planning puts out or these donors don’t want to put out the money. So
it’s you can put all these constraints that you need this and this and this to occur but
open space is so valuable at this point, the majority of people say they don’t want
Maui to turn into Oahu when you talk to people and if you don’t preserve open space
that’s what will happen, Maui will become Oahu. And you can’t pigeon hole the way
that you acquire open space, it doesn’t always fit a certain criteria, it depends on the
landowner, it depends on the community, it depends on the land itself. So I think by
any means available you should allow folks to acquire open space. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Tamara. On the...in terms of your experience, you know, the,
why we’re here in the Committee discussing this matter for the use of the Open Space
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Fund is we really do need to look at other jurisdictions where they have what you call
they call greenprinting which is a developed plan for meeting local and regional
conservation priorities and creating strategies for protecting those places and lands.
So currently we don’t have a type of plan in the County, and so w&re looking at
different ways that to improve our process that we go through currently. It always
seems like it’s reactive process during budget, and were trying to get the opinion and
the experience from those entities that have experience, wanting to acquire property
and working with the County. So just hearing from you and from your group saying
that just earmarking portions of the fund also is very helpful in leveraging with State
funds, so that’s very, very helpful. Thank you very much for coming today. Mr. Duke
Sevifia, if you could please share with the Committee your experience with the fund
and the, I guess the purchase of the property at Kaehu Bay.

MR. SEVILLA: Good afternoon, Councilmembers, Chair. Well let me see now, the area of
Kaehu Bay, I live real close by that area and how we got involved is is when North
Shore of Waiehu LLC bought the area, and that’s when we found out that that place
was, they wanted to develop that 64 acres of waterfront property, When we found out
that they wanted to develop that area the community got up in arms with that whole
project, and because of the outrage and the concern the project was stopped. So when
that stopped we decided that and at that time I was working with this agency called
Neighborhood Place of Wailuku, and we went to the owners at that time and we posed
a little plan and the plan was to like set a program right in the property to help teach
people native values, culture values, and that was to help with abused and neglected
families. So we had a little strategy there that, you know, was important because the
area, we felt like we didn’t want it to be developed. So anyway the property owner, you
know, said yeah you can use, you know, a couple of these acres to do you guy’s
program. As so we started doing the program, and then eventually we found out that
he went bankrupt because he was buying all kinds of property in Wafluku and before
you know it the market dropped in 2008 and so everything was going into foreclosure
and the property was going into foreclosure. We were afraid that his partner that was
involved with him wanted to continue to develop the place and so that’s when we
started to go out and ask different organizations, and I have to mention Venus Rosete
Medeiros, she was a big part of it at that time. And so she and I went to different
organizations like OHA, Hawaiian Home Lands and Trusts for Public Lands for
support. Now I didn’t know much about all of this kind of stuff, you know, I was
kinda, it was really brand new to me but I was willing to like, you know, put out the
effort, and part of the effort was because of my dad years ago saying that, you know,
the property down there could be utilized by many people to like be more
self-sufficient. Because we knew what that property was, was loko ia, fish ponds and
taro patches in that area. So we knew what that, the potential of that area could be.
So anyway, we went out and we reached out to Trust for Public Lands and they were
the only organization that came forward and says hey you know what, we will, we’ll
listen to you guys and we want to work with you guys. Lea Hong and Laura Kaakua
were the persons that we got in touch to, and so they came, we had a lot of meetings,
community meetings and stuff like that. And as time went on, you know, the process
-
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was is that because Trust for Private Lands they have like philanthropic money to like
buy properties and stuff like that but they also need matching funds, so the whole
idea was to go to the County and talk to Mayor Arakawa, which we did, and Sandy
Baz. And, you know, they decided that okay we have, you know, several thousands of
dollars to put in to help with the matching funds for the property, and so we got that
commitment from the County which was, you know, for me was a personal win for me,
that’s the way I look at it. So anyway, as time went by real fast kind they called me
up, Laura Kaakua, Duke, can you get this on Councilman Victorino’s agenda, you
know, because we had to put it on the agenda for like because we were looking for
monies, we needed monies to buy the property. And so I called Mike’s office real quick
kind and his aide, I forget who your aide was at that time but she was real gracious
and we, you guys put us on the agenda. And real fast kind again we came out, we did
the testimony, and the nice thing about it is that at that time I think, Mike, you was
the one that said like you know what, let’s not partner with anybody, let the County
Council acquire the land, you know, Maui County acquire the land and let’s put down
$1.7 million for the acquisition of the property. And so that was like a very positive
thing, and I think you guys were all on this, miss.. .1 think you were on the Committee
I think still, the Council, I think you were on the Council and I think Mr. White, maybe
not, I can’t remember. But anyway, I know you guys all was in favor of it all, and so
that was really good you know when I hear that kind of stuff because for me open
space is real valuable. But anyway, what happened was is that we also had another
plan because we felt like the developers in the foreclosure... ‘cause we have to go to
court for the foreclosure so there was a bid and what happened was the bank put out
the bid and they only bid out like $800,000 for 64 acres of waterfront property. And I
was like whoa, you know, that’s it, and nobody else put a bid. I guess that was a
strategy from both sides, you know, from whoever’s gonna want to develop it and from
Trust for Public Land side, you know, there was a strategy, because even though you
put out like a bid, you know, you still have to go and do a confirmation hearing to like,
you know, give other people opportunities to go out and bid for the property. So when
we went there we started holding up signs, you know, to discourage developers from,
you know, coming out and putting out a bid which it kinda worked I believe. And so
as time went on the next meeting we had with the court, Trust for Public Lands put
out their bid and they got the property. And so after that we went, we came back to
County Council for the County to like purchase the property, and there was several
meetings that we had hearings on it and but eventually the Council decided that that
was a good deal because the deal was for $900,000 for 64 acres of property. That’s a
great deal, waterfront, and if you look at where Kaehu Bay is right now it’s a real
beautiful area. That place is wetlands, you know, that can be preserved, that can be
restored, and so for me and the community we feel like that’s a really important area
to have been purchased by the County of Maui. And for me, I had a great experience
really with the County Council at that time, you know, because I got more educated in
how the process worked, and the thing is is that what I fmd that it’s, there’s more to
learn because of the management part, and that’s something that we’re working on
right now. We, the organization Ke Ao I Kam Akani H&eh&ffi, the County sees us
there but w&re not like legally the stewards of that property yet, we understand that,
-
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we have to go to Council eventually for it, but we feel like what’s important is is that
we get all our ducks in a row, what I mean by is the management plan and get that
done first, and then we come to you guys and we propose that to you guys. So we
understand that. One thing that I see is is that Maui is, we only have so much space
on this island and there’s only so much space to see. You know most of the view is
taken by hotels, you know, by the ocean, and I think we have to be real careful with
oceanfront properties from now on. I think any space that the County can purchase
for like preservation is really, really important, and I for me I’d like the Council to like,
you know, really think about all of the possibilities that or possible areas that we can
purchase. And but I think also what’s gonna be important too is if we do do that we
have to see who will steward the area too also, because, you know, we have to balance
that out, you know, we cannot just let anybody take over the property and, you know,
things doesn’t work out and stuff like that. So and for me I say that because I have to
be real careful on what, you know, my commitment is going to be to the area that we
are, you know, committed to. So it was, it’s a great experience. I think there’s more
people that need to get involved in open space. I hope, you know, through this that
more people will be more active in coming out and supporting it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Sevifia. We actually appreciate you sharing
your experience in our fact gathering. We’re still trying to address the issue about
developing a plan to prioritize lands in our County that we can acquire through this
And you brought up a very good point is the long-term
Open Space Fund.
management plans which, what do we do with then, how do we address those? So
these are issues that we need to, this Committee needs to look at as we move forward,
but I thank you for sharing your experience. I’m going to turn our attention to...

MR. SEVILLA: I got one more thing.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
MR. SEVILLA: One more thing too is that even like for now, you know, because of that
places, you know, bought by the County, we also have to take care of like, you know,
who, you know, we have the homeless population too going in that area. And so it’s,
you know, it’s really not one, an easy one, you know, decisions to make on that, you
have to be real careful with that kind of stuff But one thing that we did do, I gotta
put out also is that we got a little grant from Economic Development, Office of
Economic Development to like purchase, you know, equipment to start like
maintaining the area that we need to maintain.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much. So I’m gonna go ahead and turn our Members’
attention to the screen via video conferencing which is pretty neat. This is our first
time that we’ve had this type of technology, and I’m going to be introducing Scott
Crawford as well as Jane [sic] Effiott from Na Mamo 0 Muolea, and can you share
with the Committee your experience of with working with the fund and working with

-

14

-

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
September 29, 2015

the County regarding the property.
And also if you have any suggestions or
recommendations to improve the process.

MR. CRAWFORD: (via telephone conference bridge)
(inaudible).
Chair Guzman and
Members of the Committee. Now I’m getting a little feedback here. No I’m still.. ,hold
on a second we’re having a little technical difficulty.
.

.

.

.

.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay
MR. CRAWFORD: (via telephone conference bridge) Okay. So yeah, thank you for the
opportunity to share our perspectives with Muolea and the Open Space Fund. I know
because we’ve just gone through the lease process. You know, the Members are
probably familiar with somewhat with the history, the situation here at Muolea, but
we just wanted to give a little more thorough background about how it came to the
point where this piece of property was acquired by the County and, you know, our
experience going through that process. (inaudible)...
.

.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Hold on, Mr. Crawford. Just a second, let me see if we can get a better
reception. Is there any way that we can change them to the intercom?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We’re having a problem with the audio.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Audio, yeah. Just hold on a second, weld recess, well take a quick recess
and try to fix the technical difficulties. Hold on. Recess,
(gavel).
.

RECESS:

2:32 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:33p.m.

.

.

CHAIR GUZMAN:
(gavel)... The EAR Committee shall now reconvene. I believe that we
fixed the technical difficulties, and weld go ahead and proceed, Mr. Crawford, with
your intro or your statements.
.

.

.

MR. CRAWFORD: (via telephone conference bridge) Okay, thank you. Hopefully technical
glitches worked out here. We... so just going back, I believe it was 2004 that the Trust
for Public Land was approached about being involved in the purchase of this 70 acres,
approximately 70 acres in 2 parcels at Mu’olea, and it was the Trust for Public Land
served the role of basically facilitating the transfer to the County using funds from the
open space trust as well as a grant from NOAA and a grant from the Office of Hawaiian
Affairs. So the funds came from those three different sources. And I want to give just
little more historical background of how it came to the point where it was, the
opportunity was there to be able to make this purchase. I want to turn it over to Jan
to be able to share a little bit more of the history and background on that regard.

-
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MS. ELLIOTT: (via tetephone conference bridge) Hi, I’m Jan Effiott. I’m the treasurer of
Na Mamo 0 Muolea and I’m a neighbor of the Muolea property, I have been all my life
a neighbor. And Muo1ea has an interesting history, in the Great Mahele it was
awarded to Keohokalole who was the mother of Liliuokalani, Kalakaua, and Likelike,
so it had a long history with that family. It was sold, Keohokalole sold it to a group of
30 individuals and families, local Hawaiian families from the area, and it then, they in
turn sold it or gave it actually back to King Kalakaua, And after his death it then
passed into private hands and a group of landowners. I think there was a plantation
in there somewhere, and then eventually ended up in the hands of a group of investors
from Oahu who had it from the 1940s until the, this Trust for Public Lands facilitated
this acquisition to the County of Maui. So now our group Na Mamo 0 Muolea, most
of our members are descendents of, lineal descendents of families who have always
lived in the area and are from those 30 families that owned it after Keohokalole sold it.
So this land has been continually used by these Hawaiian families for, you know,
many years, maybe hundreds of years, and it continues to be used today for fishing
and camping and, you know, all kinds of recreational and outdoor traditional uses.
And this acquisition using the County’s Open Space Fund has been really beneficial to
all of us, neighbors who enjoy it and the local families who use it. Yeah.
MR. CRAWFORD: (via telephone conference bridge) Yeah. I wanted to mention too as part of
that, at the time when the acquisition was made the, there were plans that had been
drawn up for subdividing and developing the land and selling off parcels of it, and it
could have easily gone down a path where you could have, you know, multimillion
dollar homes there and have the access and the use cut off. But because of the Trust
for Public Land and the County’s involvement it was able to be held in open space and
for cultural use, and part of the reason why this particular property is so important
and as indicated by the fact that it was, you know, the place where King Kalakaua
choose, chose to have his summer home, it’s just a very biologically and naturally rich
area. There’s a complex natural tide pool system which provides kind of a nursery
area for the local fisheries, so it’s, you know, it’s a rich area for fishing, for shoreline
fishing and it’s a place where many families of the area have traditionally gone to pass
on the traditions to the next generation. And I think if you have a slide show, I don’t
know if youre seeing pictures
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, yes, we are.
MR. CRAWFORD: (via telephone conference bridge) --at the same time as were testifying.
But we provided a few images of some of the activities that have been going on, but
one of the images is a photo, a
photo that was taken around 1893 that was
actually my late wife, Kekula, her great, great grandmother Nakaikaina and five of her
children, including her eldest daughter Kekula who was my wife’s namesake. This
photo was taken, this photo was in the family, was in Kekula’s family and at one lime
after I had become involved with Muolea I was looking at the photo and realizing it
was in front of a mio tree and decided I wanted to go see if I could find where this milo
tree was located. So the first place I went was down to this Kanewai which is this spot
-
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on at Muolea where there’s this old milo free and it was evident right away that that
was the spot where the photo was taken about, you know, a 120 years ago now, over a
120 years ago. This was the place where when they, Nakaikaina and her children put
on their Sunday best to go have their family portrait taken, this is the spot where they
chose to go have that photo taken, and that free still there and that free is still the
gathering place where it’s really the center of where the families go to gather and pass
on the traditions. So that’s just an indication. There’s also a.. .well there’s extensive
archeology on the site and there is a traditional niu grove, a coconut grove that is very
special coconuts that are pre-contact canoe plant coconuts, so there’s a lot of very
special things about this area. And both culturally, biologically, naturally, and
historically that made everybody involved feel that it was really important that it be
preserved and that it be, that it, you know, not be developed and just turned into you
know multimillion dollars homes. So that gives you a little bit of the background on
why this area is considered so special, and it’s, you know, stifi today this is where, you
know, the families actively use it. And as part of the, during the time when the
purchase was initially being done both from the community side and from the
Administration and Council side there was a desire to have a strong community role in
the management of the property. It wasn’t clear exactly what that was going to look
like at the time but in the NOAA grant which was written by Mele Carroll at the time
when she was with the Administration, that the conditions in the NOAA grant required
that the property be managed by a local nonprofit organization, and so we were first
meeting, basically having meetings that were sponsored by the County. I give credit to
Mr. Dave DeLeon for coming out every month and serving as our secretary for the ad
hoc committee during that time and kind of helping to shepherd things along. And
after we got down the road a ways and then that ad hoc committee decided that we
would form into a nonprofit organization in 2006 and that became Na Mamo 0
Muolea. And part of our bylaws are that two thirds of our board members must be
the lineal descendents of the area that Jan talked about, so that ensures that the
management is really in the hands of the families who have a traditional, historical
connection to this land, who have a kuleana for caring for this land, and who can
provide a kind of malama that is, you know, much more committed and deeper and
more intimate than, you know, getting like, you know, somebody managing it from
afar or just putting it under a County agency to be managed. So, you know, this
partnership we feel really gives, you know, really leverages the ability for the County to
be able to bring this in as, you know, using Trust for Public Land to be able to bring it
into the public domain and then give the local families an opportunity to still continue
to practice their traditions and manage the land in a way that, you know, benefits
everybody and really provides the, you know, provides the presence and the
management commitment that is, you know, that is far greater than if the County
were just trying to do it on its own. So over this, you know, ten years we’ve as the
members of the community and the Na Mamo organization have basically been
managing it in an ad hoc sort of, you know, informal arrangement, and just taking the
initiative to, you know, we came up with a marine management plan, with a strategic
plan, we’ve done surveys, archeological survey, vegetation survey. We’ve had many
activities with youths, local youths and Kamehameha School’s
program used to
-
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be able to pass on the knowledge about the place and continue to use the place for,
know, for passing on that traditional knowledge of ahupuaa management. Many
other, you know, types of activities, but that’s brought us up to the present where
after a long somewhat fortuitous process we fmally got to the point where the lease
was approved last month thanks to the work of the Conunittee and, you know, so
w&re very thankful for that to be able to fmally formalize the relationship so that, you
know, as we go out for, you know, further developing our plans, fmding funding for
different types of, you know, preservation projects that we might want to do we have
that solid foundation moving forward into the future and we have, you know, have
that formal standing. And I think that, you know, obviously one thing that we would
recommend for moving forward with, you know, purchases in the future is having a
community role in the management is very important but we were I guess kind of
pioneering that and it’s something that hasn’t been done under the County in this way
so everybody was sort of figuring out as they went along, and obviously in the future it
would be great to have the lease process for other community organizations be more
streamlined. And hopefully we can kind of serve as
(inaudible).., and be able to,
you know, make it easier for those who follow. But I think that that, that role of
having a local community organization being intricately involved in the management is
really important to make sure that these properties that are acquired through the, you
know, with the County’s funds are able to, you know, reach their highest potential
and, you know, not just being neglected but really be able to be preserved and used in
a way that benefits the community. So I just want to turn it over to Jan one more
time to just to share a little bit more perspective of sort of as a neighbor who lives right
there adjoining the property, what it means as far as, you know, having this,
preserving open space rather than developed.
YOU

.

.

.

MS. ELLIO’fl’: (via telephone conference bridge) I would like to reemphasize what Scott said
about a community group as a, as the best manager for a property like this. I mean
it’s people who have lived there all their lives and they’ve used the property all their
lives, they have a long family tradition with the property, who really understand it and
know how to manage it and make it the most beneficial for the community at large.
And that’s, what’s kind of happened at Muolea is a lot of us from the neighborhood
and the local families who use the property have come together. As this Na Mamo 0
Muolea group we do a lot of things besides that now, we do our Limu Festival every
year and some outreach and education, we’re part of a group of other community
marine management areas in Maui County. I’d say it’s been a very positive experience
to manage this property. It really made us come together as a community and as a
neighborhood, and of course it’s wonderful to know now that for 50 years, you know,
our group and the younger people and I’m glad to say that there are younger people in
our group stepping up, you know, people in their 20s and their kids are growing up on
this land and learning how to manage it. And it’s been a very, thank you very much,
it’s a very wonderful thing that you’ve allowed us have this open space and to manage
it and to have this lease.
MR. CRAWFORD: (via telephone conference bridge) Thank you.
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Crawford and Ms. Elliott, for sharing your
experience and information and any recommendations. Members, I would have
wrapped this all up by having Ms. Lea Hong who I invited and she was the executive
director of the Trust for Public Land and she was going to give a presentation on
greenprinting, and that way we could have all taken all of these different experiences
and see how it all fit into a prioritized plan and choosing different lands for the fund as
well as long-term management. I will defer that for another time. I’m gonna open up
the floor to any questions that the Members may have and for the different entities
that have utilized the fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly and, you know, ‘cause we have some other
items to take care of, and again without the necessary information like this morning
it’s real difficult to really get into a long discussion. And I’d like the other Members to
be here too, I think that’s very important. But I will say one thing I got out of this is
each one of you, each one of these projects had a different take on it, different route
which I think is important. I think you mentioned that there’s no one size fits all,
Ms. Paltin, and I think I agree with you, there’s never gonna be a one size fits all. But
the problem is we’re trying to get everybody on the same page so that we can prioritize,
because monies are not unlimited, we worked hard to get the $20 million from the
State to get Honolua. Had we not gotten that, we’d still be battling to get enough
money to get that, so we were fortunate in that respect. In your case we were able to
drill down the project because, I mean the price because they were in foreclosure and
so we could play that game with them, so we were lucky in that respect. And in this
case they already had a lineal descendents and the premise to get done. So each one
had its real different approach to what we’ve accomplished in open space. So I would
like to see the program that Lea Hong and that, and really then really culminate and
look at how we set priorities as far as future purchases of open land ‘cause we don’t
want not to be able to do it. But there is a thing called money and it’s a limited
resource and we have committed a lot of money for a lot of open spaces all over this
County so we’d like to make sure that we do it the right way. So I thank all of you for
manao, for your efforts, and your steadfastness towards these projects and I wish you
all well, and we are here to continue support in every way possible. Thank you, Mr.
Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I want to thank all three organizations for
their passion to protect the areas that they’ve taken ownership of. I think the
challenge is, I just briefly went through the greenprinting and that’s very forward
looking but as we heard in each of these three instances the purchases were a result
-
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of impending action for development, so that the challenge for us and the community
is to get out ahead of just reacting and being in a position of planning. And I think
that’s probably the reason that this fund was started in the first place is to provide
that kind of seed money and, you know, 2 percent of the real property tax collections,
and I would encourage us at our next budget timing to look at taking a portion of the
TAT and adding that to the fund. Because it strikes me that over the last 20 some
years that we\re been receiving TAT that money just goes into the General Fund and
no one ever knows
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --what it’s paid for and I think it would be really important for
the community and for our visitors to see that the visitor dollars are working very hard
to protect what’s important not just to us but to the visitors as well. And, you know,
instead of looking at funds, a fund level that is somewhat, I don’t want to say limited
but in the overall scope of things it’s pretty limited. If you look at the fact that the TAT
has generated somewhere in the neighborhood of $450 million and I don’t think any of
us can look at anything here on Maui and say that was paid for by the visitors.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And yet they’ve put $450 million in TAT and probably closer to
over a billion dollars in property tax and yet we can’t say this has been preserved on
behalf of the community, paid for by visitor dollars, and I’d like to see that happen.
Because I think that would it would increase our appreciation of what the visitors
have contributed to, you know, to our preservation efforts. So I want to thank all
three organizations, and thank you for bringing this up because I think it’s something
that all of us believe in and need to have a greater focus on.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. White. I also agree with you and that sounds
like a wonderful idea on the TAT. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRWELLO: Thank you, Mr. White. I hope we can get that through.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Your mic’s not working.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Do we have a... there you go. Good share, Mike.
COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. We’ll hold us to that so that we can
make use of that visitors’ funds. I too would like to commend these organizations.
The Muolea Point I think it’s wonderful that we can have such pristine, I believe it’s
pristine lands and the preservations of taking care of what is lineal, you know, the
lineages still walking the land and I think that’s the beauty of it. Mr. Sevifia, I hope we
can take care of the homeless families or people that are occupying such lands as the
Kaehu Bay, and thank you for your efforts, you know, even if it was reactive to stop
-
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the development or, you know, so now practitioners can continue to still malama and
to utilize what we have there. And of course, you know, the famous Save Honolua
project, I think it’s wonderful. And in the circle of it all as I listen to and as we’ve, and
since I’ve been on Council we talk about open space. I really value a management
plan and that’s my personal because of my personal involvement in obtaining land on
Molokai with the Molokai Land Trust as a founder of the Molokai Land Trust, and in,
and what I can appreciate for those involved is the deep love for the land as far as
keeping the open space. But not just the open space because most of our lands have
just enormous cultural value, and if we can bring those archaeological stories, the
sites and the history to come alive and tell the story for our residents as well as for our
visitors. We have that going on on Molokai with the Mokio Point Land Trust as well as
the purchase that we used open space money for Kawaikapu, and the purpose for the
Kawaikapu was to restore the perennial watershed. And for the Mokio Point the
purpose was to preserve the pristine coastal land as well as all of the archaeological
cultural sites. So and then we identify all of the native plants and then it’s come alive,
and now it’s an educational, place of education that we have our children join in. So
it’s not save the open space, it’s, it fully tells the story of who we, our ancestors, how
they malama and how we continue and why we value the space. So I think that’s kind
of what I would hope that as we continue on to try and fund the saving of the open
space we resurrect, you know, I, you know, not necessarily renew but resurrect the
story of our land. Because it can sure feed us, a spiritual experience as people of this
lands. I, that’s just my personal manao. But I’d like to go back to Mr. Baz when he
talked about the annual reports and not being able to find it. Because I recall being
involved in the open space monies that we were able to obtain, I think was $480,000
from the County and we were able to leverage, that’s what we do, we leverage other
funds so they can eventually purchase it. Annual reports at least for our purchase
was for the first three years and that was submitted, and then after that the Finance, I
think if you look at the agreement, the Finance Department submits quarterly reports
based on the annual reports from that. So I think those kind of follow.., and it comes
to the Council.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I think we have a responsibility also, it’s like Mr. White says,
you know we have the monies and yet we really don’t have, but I think we have to hold
ourselves accountable and hold the grantees accountable and to its fullest with the
agreements that we’ve set forth, you know. So I just needed to share that, and I can
imagine the years of work that you folks and people in Hana and Kipahulu, and the
families that put into just being able to organize and try to understand. I know when
the words land trust came about to us on Molokai well what that, you know. And my
goodness did we learn and it’s awesome, awesome process that we can hold onto. So
thank you, thank you folks very much.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. I also agree with you in terms of the annual
reports, that’s one of the issues that we spoke about last meeting, and I did write the
-
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letter to request the annual reports and apparently, you know, they can’t fmd them.
But I guess they’re in the process of researching them. Along with that is the
long-term management plans because that’s, that won’t be indicated in the reports
and whether they’re following through with these long-term management plans. So I
totally agree that’s our responsibility that we need to do the follow up after the
purchase of open space. But I would like to thank everyone for participating in today’s
discussion. I’m gonna without objections, Members, I will defer this matter for further
continuance on the discussion on the subject matter. Without objections, deferral.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR GUZMAN: I’d like to thank everyone who attended today. I’m gonna take a quick
recess so that we can reset the Chambers for the next agenda item.
(gavel).
.

RECESS:

3:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:12p.m.

CHAIR GUZMAN:

EAR-3

.

.

.

.

.

(gavel)... The EAR Committee shall now reconvene.

EXCEPTIONAL TREES (CC 12-5)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Members we are going on to the next agenda item, EAR-3 Exceptional
Trees. The Committee is in receipt of the following: number one, the County
Communication 12-5, from the Director of Parks and Recreation, transmitting a
proposed bill to amend an Ordinance 3737 (2010), relating to exceptional trees in
Maui County. Number two, the correspondence dated September 22, 2015, from the
Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting a proposed bill entitled A Bill for an
Ordinance Amending Chapter 12.24A of the Maui County Code Relating to Exceptional
Trees. The purpose of the proposed bill is to codify the Maui County Exceptional Tree
list and add certain requirements for the nomination of exceptional frees. Members,
in 1975 the Hawaii Legislature passed an Exceptional Tree Act, Act 105 to protect
trees deemed exceptional because they were truly frees stand.. .they were trees, stand,
or groves of frees with historical or cultural value or that by reason of age, rarity,
location, size, aesthetic quality or endemic status is designated by the County Arborist
Advisory Committee as worthy of preservation. In 1990, Maui County Council added
Chapter 12.24A to the Maui County Code providing among other things procedures for
the designation of exceptional frees in the County. Since that time the Council has
periodically designated exceptional frees by amending the most current relevant
-
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ordinance to incorporate recommendations of the Maui County Arborist Committee.
Most recently on January 16th of this year, this Council enacted seven ordinances
amending Ordinance 3737 (2010) to add or remove trees from the list. The process
was cumbersome and as each bill was amended and exhibits to the ordinance was
added onto 3737 which in itself amended exhibits to the original ordinance which was
Ordinance 2041 (1991). The purpose of the proposed bill codifies the ordinances
relating to the exceptional tree list in order to place the list within the Maui County
Code rather than cumbersly [sic] going through and all the scattered ordinances. This
will make the list easier to fmd and to amend as needed pursuant to the Code
procedures. The proposed bill also as requirements for nominations at Sections
12.24A.005(3) and (C), to help standardize the nominations submissions for from the
Arborist Committee to the Council and that makes nonsubstantive revisions.
Members, as you can recall if you, I think all three of you were on the last term’s EAR
Committee when we reviewed the exceptional trees that were submitted by the
committee. It was a very long, tedious assignment on my Staffs position going
through the minutes that was presented to us to fmd out the criteria. So basically
this ordinance also puts in criteria that the Arborists Committee will have to submit a
form, and based on the form provide pictures and other relevant data that could be
allowed to be very organized and presented to the Committee and the Council. And so
this is, this ordinance, Members, is just basically cleaning house so that it can be
more efficiently reviewed and implemented as we go forward and just codifying some of
the things that we needed to do to make things more efficient. So I’m gonna go ahead
and, we have from the Department the arborist themselves David Sakoda. Do you
have any comments in regards to this bill? Amending this bill this proposed bill
amendment?
MR. SAKODA: No, I don’t.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Any comments from Corporation Counsel?
MS. SHEPPARD: Thank you, Chair. No, I don’t.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Members, do you have any questions for the
Administration? Seeing none, I would like to, Chair would like to entertain a motion
to recommend passage on the first reading of the proposed bill entitled A Bill for an
Ordinance Amending Chapter l2.24A of the Maui County Code Relating to Exceptional
Trees; incorporating any nonsubstantive revisions and filing of the County
Communication 12-5.
COUNCILMEMBER WCTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Moved by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Seconded by Mr. White.
favor, say “aye.”

Further discussion?

Seeing none, all those in

COUNCILMEM3ERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR GUZMAN: All those opposed, say “no.” We have four “ayes,” three excused. Motion
carries.
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Guzman,
Coundilmembers
Victorino and White.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Cochran,
and Hokama.

Criveilo,

Coundilmembers

Couch

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

EAR-b

FIRST
READING
COMMUNICATION.

OF

BILL

AND

FILING

OF

MAUI COUNTY PLANTING PLAN (CC 13-325 & CC 15-214)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Moving on to the next agenda item, Members, we have EAR-b. The
Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communication 13-325, from myself,
relating to the Maui County Landscaping Planting Plan. Number two, the County
Communication 15-214, from the Director of Parks and Recreation, transmitting a
draft landscaping, landscape planting plan entitled Maui County Planting Plan, Third
Edition. Number three, correspondence dated September 23, 2015, from myself,
transmitting a proposed resolution entitled Providing Comments on the Draft Maui
County Planting Plan, Third Edition. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
provide comments on the draft Maui County Planting Plan, Third Edition. Members,
Section l2.24A.030(C)( 1) requires the Maui County Arborist Committee to prepare for
review by the Mayor and Council a landscape planting plan which serves as a guide
for the care, preservation, pruning, planting, replanting, removal and disposition of
planted material in public areas. Today we have before us a long awaited update to
the Maui County Landscaping Planting Plan. Originally adopted in 1991, the plan was
revised only once before in 1993. Section 12.24A.040(b) requires the Council to review
and comment on the plan, thereafter the Arborist Cormnittee must hold one public
hearing then submit the plan with any amendments as approved by the Committee to
-
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the Mayor for his approval. The plan takes effect upon approval by the Mayor. To
explain the revised plan we have the Chairperson of the Arborist Committee,
Kimberly Thayer who is here, thank you. And we also have past chair Ernie Rezents
who also here that will make a presentation on the draft. We also have Jordan Hart
who is here as a resource person based on the fact that he was the former Arborist
Committee chair and spent a lot of, a number of hours working on it and years
working on it as well as his experience in landscaping development in his business as
well. So and for the Department we have Sue Kiang from the Department who’s also
the community volunteer coordinator, and the County Arborist David Sakoda from the
Department. I’m gonna go ahead and turn over the floor to Kimberly Thayer for the
presentation of the Maui County Planting Plan.
MS. THAYER: Thank you, Chair. Actually Ernie is gonna go first with an overview of the
plan and what’s gone into it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Rezents, the floor is yours.
MR. REZENTS: Thank you very much. The Arborist Committee wanted to have a third
edition to the Maui County Planting Plan because it had been like about 20 years
since the second edition was approved, and they, the committee wanted to eliminate or
not include any invasive species in the new document. So we have had to work with
the MISC and Hawaii Pacific Weed Risk Assessment protocol to eliminate invasive
species. The committee also wanted to increase free canopies and increase parking lot
shade so the new document now has a parking lot chapter. The cormnittee also
wanted to have native Hawaiian plants be expanded upon and now it’s featured in a
separate chapter and not all intermingled with the other plants and so forth. And we
have a fantastic alphabetical list of both common names and scientific names of
plants in one place so it makes it very easy to fmd it in the document. Now the
committee did do some very minor changes in some free heights and widths on very
few issues but for the most part all the heights and widths of the second edition is in
the third edition. Now some people have questioned our changing the heights and
widths of a few frees and have made an issue of it, and Bob Hobdy and I, together
combined have about 80 years of local history of frees in Hawaii and we feel that the
minor tweaking that we did is justified, and to substantiate our reasoning I wrote to a
person named Paul Weissich. Mr. Weissich is a very well known and respected free
person and he was in charge of Foster Botanical Garden in Honolulu for many years,
and I asked him about the mature height and the mature spread of frees and he
responded that, first who knows when a free really is fully matured, many factors
affect canopy, prevailing winds, soil and moisture conditions, fertilizing, pruning, et
cetera.
And he concluded that bottom line is there are no hard and fast
measurements of canopy spread, only the inexperienced will insist on a certain
number. So in the third edition we don’t have like maximum height or maximum
width, we said expected mature height and expected mature width.
And the
committee thought this was good because we are not God almighty who knows how
high or wide a canopy is gonna be, so that’s the terminology w&re using in the new
-
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edition. But there are some people who criticize that, but I must say that I think w&re
justified in making a few tweaks and a little bit of change in verbiage. That’s why you
have a third edition you improve upon what you had previously. Now I’m not the sole
person who worked on this document, it has taken me 15 years and over 4,000 hours,
and it’s a fantastic document, the only one of its kind in the State of Hawaii and you
find it being used in other islands in Hawaii. And even I think Guam they use it down
there for some of their work. And Bob Hobdy who was here earlier and I worked for
many hours, and he is a fantastic resource person. Philip Thomas who is now is on
the mainland helped me with the invasive species, because of him we removed all the
invasive species and have worked with MISC and Hawaii Pacific Weed Risk
Assessment and Christine Andrews, my angel who typed it for me without, using
Windows 7 and that thing had a mind of its own and it wanted to format the
document either all letterhead or all landscape and I went just berserk, so Christine
Andrews takes special credit for taming the monster. Well that’s about all I have to
say, but Paul Weissich thought our heights and widths were great, and Bob Hobdy
and I have put in our best foot forward and I think we can be very proud of having a
fantastic third edition of the Maui County Planting Plan. Thank you very much for
this afternoon.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Ms. Thayer, do you, would like to make some opening
statements? And then followed by Mr. Hart.

BEGIN PRESENTATION...

MS. THAYER: So we have a PowerPoint prepared to kind of take you guys through the
content of the new plan and how it differs and has evolved from the second edition of
the plan. So again thank you very much for having us here today. This has been a
very, very long time coming with many, many people involved, blood, sweat and tears,
so we axe very excited to be here today to present this to you. So by way of
background there is State legislation from 1975 that called for the creation of an
Arborist Committee within each county in Hawaii, pretty much specifically for the
protection of exceptional frees. Following that under Maui County Code Chapter
12.24A in Mayor Hannibal Tavares’ era the Maui County Arborist Committee was
created following that State law with the duty of identifying and preserving exceptional
frees. However, Maui County is the only County Arborist Committee in the State that
has gone beyond just doing exceptional frees. So that is where the germination of the
planting plan is to go over all landscape planting within the County. And one thing
notable about Maui County is that we are Hawaii’s oldest free city USA in Hawaii
which gets celebrated every year at Arbor Day, which is a very big event. But anyway,
about the Maui County Planting Plan it’s meant to serve as a guide, as a resource for
people to consult for landscape planting projects on the island. And the provisions in
here and the guidelines in here are designed to foster healthy and vibrant
environments with a local sense of place that we all know and love, it’s why we live
here, it’s why we are so happy here. So we think of places like the banyan free in
-
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Lahaina which is an exceptional tree under our exceptional tree program. There’s the,
right in front of Kaahumanu Church in front of this building that big giant monkey
pod free is in the exceptional tree program. But there’s also public spaces like
Launiupoko Beach Park which everyone loves to hang out under because it’s so nice
and shady, everyone has had a first birthday there, but it’s those kind of public spaces
that this document is seeking to foster. Okay so the first edition of the Planting Plan
came out in September, 1991. It had a fairly limited scope covering sfreet frees, park
frees and exceptional frees. An interesting note is this was typed, mimeographed and
published in-house. How far we have come.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I bet you needed a franslation.
MS. THAYER: Yes. I do not have any experience with that I will say. There we go. So
onward to the second edition, this came three years after the first edition in 1994.
There was an update that was printed in December of 2000. So the second edition
applied to all County roads and parks, essentially all County lands, both public and
private parking lots were touched upon. Five copies were given to the libraries and
more recently the document has been put online. So this current version is available
from our Arborist Committee website on the County website. But now 21 years later
we come to the third edition of the Maui County Planting Plan. So time goes by, you
learn along the way. There are things we know now that were not known at the time
the second edition was created. Particularly invasive species, the importance of native
species and then also the significance of parking lot shade frees. So in the past few
years this third edition has been reviewed by many, many agencies, so Maui County
Departments including Planning, Water Supply, Parks and Recreation and Public
Works, and Corp. Counsel have all reviewed this document, we’ve met with all the
Directors, we’ve incorporated everyone’s comments and addressed everyone’s
comments. This has also been reviewed by landscape architects across the State. As
Ernie mentioned before this is the only document of its kind in the State of Hawaii so
this is used by landscape professionals everywhere, We’ve also gotten review from
local landscape organizations, the Maui Association of Landscape Professionals, Maui
Green and Beautiful have provided comments along with dozens of committee
members and dedicated volunteers. So the information in here is updated for the
knowledge we have now, expanded information, and again this is a guide, it’s a
resource for all interested people who will be doing planting in Maui County. So as in
the second edition this is the things that have essentially remained the same. So we
still have objectives and policies setting out the vision of what this plan is designed to
achieve. There’s chapters on street frees, there’s a chapter on sound and visual
barriers, park and open space trees, the exceptional free program, procedures and
standards for planting and proper maintenance of trees over thne, turf grass and
ground covers, irrigation and water conservation, and then native Hawaiian and
Polynesian infroduced plants, so that content has carried over. But now in the third
edition we’ve incorporated a history of the Arborist Committee, so this is explaining
our roots to have a free metaphor in here but the roots of why we are here. We’ve also
incorporated into the sfreet free chapter highway median frees because we have more
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and more of those nowadays with larger highways. A chapter in itself on parking lot
shade trees recognizing there’s a County Code requirement to have shade trees in
every parking lot. And there is also expanded information on the visual barriers,
sound barriers, exceptional frees, care and maintenance over time, ground covers and
then like I said native Hawaiian and Polynesian introduced species. And in concert
with all this is updates to all the species tables for suggestions of what should planted
in everyplace. And now I’ll go into kind of more detailed of some of these sections. So
like the previous plan the species are kind of divided into or the islands rather are
divided into different planting zones, so there’s all different microcimates in our
islands because of the variation in elevation, there’s valleys, there’s ridges, different
rainfall in different parts, so youre gonna need a different plants in every place for
them to grow well. So we have wet areas, dry areas, high elevation, low elevation. So
in essence using a species planting zone, preferred elevation, youll be able to fmd the
right plant for the right place and have it grow well over time. So there’s a map like
this for every island in the County. Moving on, there’s a chapter for street trees. So
something new in this edition of the plan is that there’s an emphasis on a mixture of
tree types as opposed to just one single species all the way down. And a lot of this is
because when you just have one type of tree if there is a pest that comes in, it is going
to wipe out your whole street or your whole parking lot or whatever you may have. So
if you have a variety you get a nice visual assortment but you also get some resistance
to pests, resistance to disease over time. So like I mentioned we’ve had updated
planting tables and it’s hard to see in this but there’s scientific names for all the
landscape professionals, there’s common names for all the lay people. Like Ernie
mentioned there’s expected height and expected spread which takes into account that
the tree is not going to do as well in an urban environment even with all the care
youre taking. So for planning purposes it gives you a better idea of how the tree is
going to grow. There’s also something nice in here is flower color, water requirements,
whether the tree has nuts or seeds that you might have to worry about ‘cause some,
maintenance wise that’s often a concern. And then, oh the planting zones so where on
the island these species would be best to grow. So these tables are provided for street
trees, park trees, greenways, tables for turf grass and ground cover. And the ground
cover chapter also takes into account nowadays more dry conditions and salt spray
‘cause that’s a concern in more coastal areas with our high waves in action and salt
does take a toll on plants, and also the use of like recycled water has a lot more salt in
it that can affect plants also. So if we’re gonna want to use more recycled water we’re
gonna want to know which plants can handle that best. Another critical chapter that
is expanded in the third edition is proper pruning, care and maintenance of trees. So
these provisions in here are all based on nationally and internationally recognized
principles for proper pruning, planting, fertilization, irrigation. So if these principles
are followed, trees that are planted will grow healthier, stronger, fuller, live longer,
they’ll become assets and not liabilities to everyone. Something new, we’ve also
included proper coconut pruning which is, actually stems from one of the comments
we received from the Aloha Arborist’s Association. There’s pictures in here for all the
visual learners, diagramming, proper planting, staking, supports for the frees,
different kinds of trees. Moving on, another new chapter is parking lot shade trees.
-
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So we all know there’s a County ordinance, the Off-Street Parking Ordinance 19.36A
that calls for one large crown shade tree for every five parking spaces. But in
developing this plan and something we see in coming to our committee all the time is
that there’s a lack of a definition of a large crown shade tree. So it is required but it is
not fully defined, so that leads to problems which we will see. So for example the
monkey pod, we all are familiar with is a large crown shade tree, it will grow very big
and wide and create a lot of shade. However, we get things like this, so this stick
poking up is a monkey pod tree, so technically when you look, review the landscape
planting plan it’s gonna specify a monkey pod, you’re gonna check off the box that one
was planted but when it grows like this, does this still count as a shade tree?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess not.
MS. THAYER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If that’s shade then I don’t know what is. Okay.
MS. THAYER: So there’s examples of this all across the island, and something that we have
noticed on the committee is that this is an epidemic of sorts that is spreading. So
again these are meant to be shade trees in parking lots and obviously there is very
little shade. Yeah, we see this all over the place. And one thing kind of interesting
about this is that research has shown that when commercial centers have well-shaded
parking lots people stay longer and they shop more so it’s better for everyone involved.
In neighborhoods with trees along streets you have happier people and statistically
healthier people when you have more shade, more trees, more greenery all around. So
above all this is the Maui, this is the Hawaii that we’re attracted to, that we love and
for the natural beauty around us. So in the parking lot shade tree chapter there is
discussed or is there set forth the goal of achieving 25 percent shade coverage within
parking lots, so within a given parking lot a quarter of it will be covered by shade. And
because trees need time to grow there is a timeframe of 15 years to set for this. And a
note that we will make is that we hope to be working with the Council to create an
ordinance that will achieve a higher degree of shade in parking lots and to kind of
encourage proper pruning so that those, this doesn’t happen anymore, so that we do
get nice shade everywhere. Next. Okay. Next Chapter. So exceptional trees again is
one of the main core responsibilities of the committee, so this chapter in the third
edition of the Planting Plan is somewhat expanded beyond the second edition so
there’s a lot more information in here. For people that would be interested in
nominating an exceptional tree on their property or on a friend’s property or anywhere
in the County, so there’s guidelines in here for what constitutes an exceptional tree,
the process to go through for nomination for getting that approved ‘cause we’d like to
encourage more of that. There’s a lot, a lot, a lot, a lot of trees on this County that are
not on the exceptional tree list yet and hopefully we will have a lot more in the coming
years. Oh and again, if all the principles in this plan are followed then we will have a
lot more healthy trees that will grow to exceptional status over time. Last but not
least, we now in this third edition of the plan have dedicated chapters to native species
-
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and to invasive species. So the second edition somewhat problematically, hindsight
being 20/20, the second edition included a number of invasive species in all those
species tables for park trees or street trees, And the thing with having invasive species
planted anywhere is that... so Maui has a lot of microclimates that are very hospitable
to species from around the world so generally anything can find a nice sweet niche in
the environment to just take off in. So although these plants might be put in an
urban environment they have fruits that birds eat and go poop in the mountains,
there are spores that are wind disbursed and at some point get into the mountains.
So there’s species like strawberry guava that started as a landscaping plant that now
covers thousands of acres in the mountain. Miconia was a landscaping plant at one
point, Australian tree fern is a landscaping plant that is now taking over the forest in
Kauai and we have it sprouting up over here. So the committee felt it very, very
important to take invasive species out of this book. And so that was done with the
help of the Maui Invasive Species Committee consulting the Hawaii Pacific Weed Risk
Assessment, those are all taken out. Now conversely as bad as invasive species are,
native species are just as good. So there is a dedicated chapter for native species and
a discussion of their merits in this new plan. So the thing about natives, they are
specifically adapted to our environment, this is where they’re from, this is where they
grow best. They’re ecologically significant so if birds want to take ‘em into the
mountains, if it gets spread by wind it’s fine, we’re good right, there is only benefits
that come of that. There’s also cultural and traditional significance, so one day
instead of having to hike up in the mountains to gather flower for lei or for hula you
can go to the park and gather flowers over there. Yeah. So it’s good for everyone
involved. But that is in essence the changes to this plan, so if you have any questions
we are here for you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Thayer. We also, we would have Jordan Hart give his
perspective on the professional side of landscaping in regards to this Planting Plan,
Third Edition.
MR. HART: Thank you, Chair. My name is Jordan Hart, President of Chris Hart and
Partners. We do landscape architecture and land use planning. I’m also the past
chair of the Arborist Committee, and to reiterate what Ernie and Kim said this update
to the planting plan is a long time coming. I know that I served, you know, five years,
four and a half years as chair in reviewing this and, you know, it consumed a full
term. So there’s a lot of people that put in a lot of time. In regards to the landscape
profession I think that the update to planting plan is very well organized, it’s
necessary. I think that all the items that Kim covered are appropriate and just
necessary progression of what we know now in comparison to what we knew in the
past. And I think that this is a positive improvement for all of us. Thank you.
•

END PRESENTATION
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Hart. I’m gonna turn the Members’ attentions to the
Administration. We have first of all from the Department of Parks, Sue Kiang, do you
have any comments that you’d like to share with the Committee?

MS. KIANG: Only that I have been privy at different levels of support in the very hard work
that has gone into this plan, and it’s such a joy to see it come to this point. And I
certainly hope that the Council will see fit to send it on its way to approval Thank
you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. And we also have our arborist, the County Arborist,
David Sakoda, do you have any comments in regards to the Planting Plan, Third
Edition?
MR. SAKODA: It was raised several times, a couple of times in the presentation the changes
in the tree size, expected mature crown spread and height. for an example, monkey
pod has in the current plan a 150 foot spread, in the proposed plan it’s 80 feet. So
one of the keys of having a planting plan is it’s a tool in designing what is gonna be an
appropriate tree or what a tree will need for it to grow, and we want these trees to
reach their mature size because they provide the most benefits when they’re mature.
So that was always a concern of mine and I’ve relayed that to the committee, and its,
they decided to stay with their proposed mature spreads and heights, so.
MS. KIANG: Could I just add that starting with a good document of course is what we would
all hope for and why you spend such time in developing ordinances and that sort of
thing, and then from the document and something that’s recommended is the use of a
certified arborist and the skill set that you heard today in support of that. And that
individual has the expertise to look at the soil conditions, the complimentary uses to
what goes on for that tree in and of itself.
So I think that having a broad
interpretation was what the Committee was hopeful for, and frankly even the whole
process of invasive species was difficult for some because there are some individuals
that love anything that’s green and we got to a point where we lovingly called the other
half the nature Nazis. So again this shows 20 years of really hard discussions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
questions. Mr. Victorino?

Members, I’m gonna open it up open up the floor for

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: first of all I want to thank all those involved, especially you
the Arborist Committee and you, Mr. Rezents, for your many years, your 60-plus years
of dedication to Maui County in the areas of trees and what’s important, what this
really means to us. All of this presentation today really gives us a clear view on what
needs to be done and where we need to go. I just came back from the East and you go
to towns like Philly and Boston and New York, you’d be surprised how many trees are
planted. I mean neighborhoods are basically full of trees, you know. And so I believe
-
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this is something we need to continue to work at, so this gives you the
groundwork... this gives us I should say the footing as I might call it to launch this
program and to make it what I call palatable. I think the important things is native
species, drought-tolerant species, species that use as liffle water as possible. I think
this is very important, this is something we need to continue to consider and I’m glad
to see that here. Mr. Chair, I think we... I don’t see any reason to make any changes. I
think this is one of those documents that I can support and give them time to really
show us what the reality of the plan is. You know we won’t know until a few years
down the road how this all works out. The concern I do have and I will not let this one
go is the fact that we need not only to put our money where our mouth is and it comes
to the trees we have out there, We’ve had devastating losses, many of them in Oahu
because they make the news but we have them here on Maui which is pretty much
nobody talks about where trees are actually rotting and falling. Luckily so far, knock
on wood, we haven’t caused much damage but there is that problem out there. The
other thing is when we’ve have these heavy winds and storms, right up in this
Kehalani district you saw all the frees were wiped out along the roadway and they
came along and cut ‘em all down. I mean basically theyre coming back now. So I
think we have to make sure whatever trees are put in for the particular area can resist
wind. I think you’ve addressed it but wind is a big factor here on Maui, more so than
you have in the other counties and on a consistent basis also. So these are the
concerns I have, you’ve addressed some of ‘em, maybe in time we will have to look at
‘em in future documents. But I like native, enough of this invasive species stuff that
we brought in, we found nothing but problems. Wish we could go and say dig ‘em all
out and start all over but that may be too draconian but it’s a thought, it’s a thought.
Anyhow, thank you very much. Mr. Chair, I can support this. I don’t see why we
should make any revisions at this point. I really think they’ve put their heart and
soul. Talk about passion like the other group this one has their passion, and I’m
excited to put our support behind of this r at least my support, I won’t speak for my
other Members. But I think I can get behind of this plan and really give them an
opportunity, and even Mr. Sakoda agrees that, you know, this can work we just gotta
keep looking and making systemic or, you know, changes as they come up. So thank
you very much to all of you, to the Administration, to you, Mr. Chair, for bringing this
forward.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And thank you especially, Ernie, because
you’ve been at this a lot longer than anybody else. And, you know, I think you have
continually brought shade to these Chambers, and I would, you know, I drive to the
West side more times than I can count and one of the most pleasant parts of that drive
is through Olowalu.
CHAIR GUZMAN: That’s true.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
And those trees just provide a very different feel to the
experience. And it saddens me that we don’t seem to be able to see our way clear to
doing that in other places. And I think part of it might be because many people have
been convinced that we don’t have enough water. Well we have enough water, it’s just
a matter of transporting it and making the decision that w&re going to use it for that
purpose, or use recycled water. But I hope that this will help transform not just
County highways but also State highways into tree-lined avenues because as
Mr. Victorino said you go to the mainland and there are well thought out, well
planned, well planted, well manicured and healthy trees everywhere, and it just makes
it so much different, an environment and so much different in experience. And for
people that come here from other places to see that we’ve got barren roadways is really
kind of sad. So I’m excited to support this. I do have a question on the parking lot
trees because.. .well I have two questions, one is is a monkey pod an invasive species
or not?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Thayer or Mr. Rezents.
MR. REZENTS: It is not an invasive species, but you look at the Hawaii Pacific Weed Risk
Assessment and they look at about 19 questions and if it’s yes that they have a plus 1,
if it’s no it’s a minus 1, they add them all together and if it’s below 0 it’s okay to plant,
if it’s 0 to 6 it’s questionable and above that you don’t. And monkey pod is safe, it is
not being or invading the mountains to jeopardize our watershed so it’s not invasive, it
is a perfectly good tree to plant.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So the determination of whether something is invasive or
not is its ability to spread into areas where it’s not intended to be?
MR. REZENTS: That’s one of the
produces, is it windblown

.

..(inaudible),.. the other is like how many seeds it

--

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Where do the seeds go.
MR. REZENTS: --does it travel by a bird or something. And the monkey pod has very heavy
seeds that fall to ground
--

COUNCILMEM3ER WHITE: Right.
MR. REZENTS: --and so they’re not gonna be invading the mountains here.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you for that clarification.
MR. REZENTS: That’s why I have two in my yard.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I do note that on my way home. The other question I had with
respect to parking lots is that I mean some of that pruning that you showed was pretty
-
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extreme, but I think some people feel that by pruning theyre restricting the root
growth and the roots obviously disturb the pavement. Monkey pods.. .1 mean I have a
gas-powered sweeper that cleans up under our monkey pods, they create tons and
tons of trash. So I think it’d be really great if you could come up with a, the best
parking lot tree that creates the most shade and the least rubbish and doesn’t uplift
the pavement.
MR. REZENTS: I have a solution. For that you must plant a plastic tree. You see in the
parking lot chapter these trees, we have specified the size of the planter so not one
little diamond will be suitable for all trees that you see fit. So with this edition youre
gonna have recommended a certain size, and we repeatedly mention root barriers
throughout the whole document so that’s gonna be another one too, and deep
watering rather than surface watering to encourage roots to go deeper. And so there
are ways to prevent lifting of asphalt, but youre gonna have some of it occur but you
look at these little diamonds that a monkey pod tree are planted in, that’s ridiculous.
Throughout this plan says you have to have a certain size or you have to have a long
barrier, I mean a long planting place, you can put several trees in there but line it with
root barriers. So I think we should have a decrease of damage to asphalt. It’s not
gonna be totally eliminated, I think liii be decreased.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Great.
MR. REZENTS: W&re trying our best to do the best.

.

.

(inaudible)...

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Ill keep my eye out for the plastic tree next to your driveway.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Sakoda, do you want to respond to Mr. White?
MR. SAKODA: No comment, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for bringing this on today’s
agenda.
I too just automatically support such a.. .it’s a treasure, thank you,
Mr. Rezents and Members. I totally, totally respect whatever you document, so there’s
no question. And I too fmd so much peace, you know, just sitting under a tree or
driving through a grove of trees, yeah, it’s peaceful, and I think if we can help to
accent that throughout our islands we’d be better people. So thank you very much.
Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Mr. Rezents, you brought up a good point and
this is something that I would look into as far as, Mr. Chair, as maybe a part of this
landscaping plan as part of our ordinance or policy, deep water or deep watering of
plants. Because I found out that roots go to wherever the water is. If the water is to
the right the roots will grow to the right, if the water is to the left, wherever the water
is the roots will move. And I’m finding this out right up here in Waikapu badly right
now and that’s another story. So but I’ve already been told by others and Mr. Rezents
just reminded me that by doing deep irrigation roots grow down and not out and that
also prevents not only damage to pavement but damage to buildings and other
pertinent structures close by. So thank you very much for bringing it up because I
think that’s something that I would look to along with some of these other suggestions
to introduce because I think this is where we’ve had the biggest problem is because
water attracts these roots and they dig up the roads, your sidewalks and everything
else and then people are getting very upset. But I think if you do deep irrigation the
roots grow down and when they grow out at that point they’re growing out
underground and not on your pavement or our pertinent structures that get damaged,
walls, retaining walls, et cetera. So thank you, Mr. Rezents for bringing that back to
the forefront.
MR. REZENTS: And it’s in the plan, you know, the Maui County Planting Plan about deep
watering and exactly what you said.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. But I think if we make, you know, some of this I
think we have to make it mandatory or not mandatory but highly recommended
because people then take the easy way out. I think this is one of those areas where I
think enough easy ways out. Maybe like Mr. White also said by using reclaimed water
is another area that we can really push. But the deep watering of the roots and
drawing the roots down instead of out is really a real important aspect and probably
one of the better answers for all of this lifting of pavements and cements and walls and
structures at this point in time. So thank you. Thank you, Mr. Rezents. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Victorino?

Mr. Sakoda, do you have any comments for

MR. SAKODA: No comments.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Members, at this, you know, I just wanted say a few
comments before I entertain a motion, is that, you know, I, coming into the term,
being first elected and I guess the Arborist Committee was the only Committee I
actually could work with ‘cause it’s the only one in Parks. And so I went to several
meetings and of course I know Jordan Hart and his frustration is leaving the
committee or terming out as president and not having the planting plan completed.
So I’ve been with them when the word processor broke down, and then the frustration
-
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of trying to get it through every department. And so I’m so very, very happy and so
proud, and congratulations and kudos to the committee, they have had to go through
quite a bit to get where it is at right now. I’d like to thank Kimberly Thayer, Ernie
Rezents, Jordan Hart and all the other committee members that have termed out and
not been able to see this come to fruition.
So at this time I’m going to be
recommending that the Committee approve without changes and move this forward to
the Mayor. If you have any objections please... or any other comments you wanted to
add?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no I was just gonna agree to...
CHAIR GUZMAN: We can put into it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: III wait for your recommendation, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. But that’s my recommendation is to, as part of Exhibit “1” is to add
that the Committee recommends approval without changes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. So it’s been moved and seconded. Moved by Mr. Victorino,
seconded by Ms. Crivello. Mt. .further discussion? All those in favor say.. .yeah,
Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I just can’t pass it up. I have to thank everyone for bringing this
to fruition and hope that it takes root.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
Exhibit “1”?

Can we... should we put that in part of the recommendations as

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, whatever makes, Mr. White happy and I second
that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. So all those in favor, say “aye.”
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mi. those opposed, say “no.” We have four ayes, three excused, I mean no
noes, three excused. Motion carries,
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VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Councilmembers
Guzman,
Victorino and White.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Cochran,
and Hokama.

Councilmembers

Criveilo,

Couch

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL OF EXHIBIT-i.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Now moving on to the adoption of the reso itself since we’ve now put in the
recommendations in the Exhibit “1”. The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend
adoption of the proposed resolution entitled Providing Comments on Draft Maui
County Planting Plan, Third Edition; incorporating the Committee’s comments on
Exhibit “1” and any nonsubstantive revisions, and filing a County Communication 13325 and 15-2 14.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Moved by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Seconded by Ms. Crivello. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those
in favor say, “aye.”
COUNCILMEM3ERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR GUZMAN: All those opposed, say “no.” We have four “ayes,” no “noes” three excused.
Motion carries.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Guzman,
Chair
Councilmembers
Victorino and White.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC:

Vice-Chair Cochran,
and Hokama.

Councilmembers

Criveilo,

Couch

MOTION CARRIED.
ADOPTION OF REVISED RESOLUTION AND FILING OF
COMMUNICATIONS.

ACTION:

CHAIR GUZMAN: Congratulations Committee, made it through the next process. Thank
you. Members, this will be, this will conclude our items on today’s agenda. I thank
everyone for participating in a very productive afternoon. So the EAR Committee shall
now adjourn.
(gavel).
.

ADJOURN:

.

.

4:03 p.m.
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DON S. OUZMAN/hthr
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